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Mandatory Pre-bid Meeting 

January 15, 2015, 10am 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Meeting Location:  Delaware State University  

   Living & Learning Commons 

   Dover, Delaware 

 

Meeting Attendees:      

(Refer to attached Sign-In Sheet) 

 
1. Attendee Sign-In: 

a. Sign-in sheet was circulated.  All attendees are signed in.  Sign-in sheet will be distributed 

as part of Addendum #2.   

2. Responsible Parties:  

a. DSU:  Jessica Wilson, Bidding Point of Contact 

b. DSU:  J.D. Bartlett, Director of Planning and Construction 

c. DSU:  Khalid Zerrad, Construction Project Manager 

d. Becker Morgan: Bryan Hutchison, Architect 

3. Explanation of the project:  

a. As outlined in the Bid Advertisement.  All documents can be obtained through the state 

bidding system at http://bids.delaware.gov/bids_detail.asp?i=2809&DOT=N. Please 

contact Jessica Wilson at jwilson@desu.edu with any questions or concerns with obtaining 

bid documents. 

b. Construction Schedule 

1. Earliest Start of Construction Date – May 13, 2015. 

2. Substantial Completion Date – July 31, 2015.  

4. Project Requirements:  
a. This project shall comply with all applicable State bid laws including, but is not limited to 

requirements for Bid Bonds, Payment Bonds, and Performance Bonds.  

b. The State of Delaware Prevailing Wage Regulations apply to this project.  Refer to the 

project manual for further information. 

5. Bid Form Review:  

a. The Bid Form was briefly outlined.  It is essential that bid be submitted in its entirety 

including required forms & attachments, as indicated in the specifications.  Submitted bid 

shall be lump sum.  Submitted bid shall include pricing for each alternate.   

b. Subcontractors List section of the bid form shall not be left blank for any reason. 

Noncompliance may result in a rejection of submitted bid.  If bidding contractor is doing 

the work in the place of a subcontractor, indicate accordingly on said form.  The following 

subcontractor categories have been established and shall be reflected in each bid: 

1. Demolition 

2. HVAC 

3. Carpentry 

http://bids.delaware.gov/bids_detail.asp?i=2809&DOT=N
mailto:jwilson@desu.edu
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4. Electrical 

5. Plumbing 

6. Painting 

7. Fire Protection 

6. Bid Submission: 

a. Bids will be accepted until Friday, February 6, 2015 3:00pm, at the Administration 

Building in Room 321 of the Delaware State University, Dover Campus.  Bids will be 

publically opened and read immediately. 

7. Document Interpretations or Questions:  

a. All bidding related questions should be submitted in writing to Jessica Wilson. Questions, 

answers to questions, and clarifications will be provided via addendum.   

b. Submit all requests and questions, in writing via email, no later than Thursday, January 

29, 2015, 4:00pm, EST.   

8. Addenda  
a. The final addendum will be issued on, or before, Tuesday, February 3

rd
, 2015. 

9. Question and Answers 

a. Question: Will the building be occupied during construction? 

Answer: The building is currently serving two entities, divided generally east and west.  

The east side of the facility is inaccessible from the east side. The west side of the facility 

houses the Early College High School.  This school will be in session through May 29.  

The contractor shall make a conscience effort to minimize disruption of the school’s 

activities through May 29. The contractor shall be responsible for scheduling key activities 

accordingly and reflect accordingly in schedule submitted with bid.  The east side of the 

building houses a University Residence Hall.  The earliest start date of this project occurs 

after students have vacated the property following the Spring 2015 semester and project 

completion will occur prior to the students returning for the Fall 2016 semester. All 

construction activities will be contained within the east side of the building. 

b. Question: With a set construction schedule, will the contractor be able to work any hours 

necessary to complete the project including nights and weekends? 

Answer: The University will permit work to beyond the “Regular Hours” indicated in the 

bid form (M-F, 7:30am – 4:30pm). As discussed in the bid form review, the contractor 

shall submit proposed work hours needed to complete the project. The contractor is 

responsible for conducting work in adherence with all state and local codes and regulations.   

c. Question: Is a construction schedule required with the bid submission? 

Answer: A construction schedule, reflecting all major construction activities shall be 

submitted with the bid in order to be considered.  The University reserves the right to 

consider construction sequencing and scheduling as a factor in bid evaluations. 

d. Question: Does this contract address asbestos abatement? 

Answer: The University will engage a third party, under a separate contract, to test and 

abate any hazardous materials prior to commencement of work under this contract. 

e. Question: Who is the preferred fire alarm vendor? 

Answer: The existing fire alarm system was installed in 2014 and is under warranty by 

Tyco Simplex-Grinnell.  Scope indicated in contract documents shall be completed such 

that existing warranty is not impacted. 

f. Question: Is the University responsible for obtaining the building permit? 

Answer: The University has obtained approval for the work outlined in the bid documents 

through the City of Dover.  It shall be the responsibility of the successful bidder to obtain 

construction permits, prior to construction.  The general construction permit can be 

obtained at the City of Dover City Hall.  Associated fee will be $1,417.00, at the expense 

of the contractor. 

 

These notes represent the author’s understanding of the issues discussed.  Please contact the author with 

any discrepancies no later than three calendar days after receipt of these minutes.  Otherwise, the 

contents of these minutes will be deemed accepted by all recipients.  
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/jdb 

 

Enclosure(s):  Pre-bid Sign-in Sheet 

cc: All Attendees 

Facilities Management File: N:\Planning and Construction\Projects\LivingLearningCommons\FD-

14-037.04 Laundry Room Renovation\03-Bidding\Pre-bid Meeting\Pre-bid Meeting 

Minutes_REV.docx 
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